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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of K.
H. Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to our shareholders the 2019/20 Annual Report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

2019/20 can be seen as a challenging but rewarding year. The
Group’s overall revenue increased by approximately 84.7% to
approximately HK$374,903,000 during the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: approximately HK$203,015,000). The profit and
total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$1,009,000 (2019: loss and total comprehensive income of
approximately HK$29,107,000). The turnaround from net loss to net
profit was primarily attributable to the significant increase in revenue
and gross profit as a result of a new project undertaken by the Group
and commenced since September 2019.

The Group’s outstanding value of the contracts on hand as
at 31 March 2020 was approximately HK$310 million (2019:
approximately HK$248 million). Subsequent to 31 March 2020, the
Group has been awarded 3 foundation projects with original contract
sum of approximately HK$1,242 million. As such the outstanding
value of the contracts on hand is at a strong level. Consequently,
the turnover and profits of the Group for the coming year are likely
to secure.

Our business strategies are effective and rewarding as evidenced
by the turnaround from net loss to net profit and the strong level of
outstanding value of contract on hand. Land and housing are still
the most important agendas in the 2019 Policy Address delivered
by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The Group believes that there will be more opportunities in
the foundation industry in Hong Kong as a result of the boosting of
land supply for housing developments for both the private and the
public sectors as well as fostering infrastructure development plans
in the long term.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report

BRIRR:

AANERRATEBIERAERAB (ARQE])
Ex((gz)e(Ee)MABMBRERSE
AArEREMBAR(AEENHZ-ZF
—TEE-A=t+—-HIEEZ-T-N /=
TEER o

BN EREE A B IR
WHEEL AEEHEE _ZT_TF=F7
—t+—BILFEZEERFZEMN8LT%
Z #9374,903,000% jt(=Z & — N F: 4
203,015,000/ 7T) - AR BB AEIEEHZE
TECEEZA=Z+—HIEEZENES
Uk 25 4258 49 .51,009,00078 T (ZZE—h4F :
E51E K 2 U S 258 4929,107,0008 7T) ° KX
NWERAEBEABRETEANAEEE TN
FNARAEZELRFAET BFEEERKZE
K I K08 58 00 FT BR o

RIE-TF=-F=1+—H A&EEFBEX
TERALNEBEBALNOBEESL(ZZE—N
F 248 BB L) c RZEZFTF=H=
+—HA% AEEERMEABEIEE  RiA
BHSFE A48 88 MFBERTK
BHEBEEKXR Bt NEBERFHNEER
Kt B FE AT 15 B R FZ o

AEBERBERAR  BFBRTHRANE
BEEX REHRMOEBRBERREE - &
BREMNTHRITRREMER-FT—NFiE
BBREAR  tMMEFNESREZHRBE -
AEERE ARBARLERQE D
EREREMIHBHEBARESREER
BRETE BEEMEXZBLRESHE -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREEBE

Notwithstanding the above, in view of the outbreak of social unrest
and Covid-19, the foundation industry in Hong Kong still remains
challenging and the Group will continue to adopt different tendering
strategies by widening its customer base and implementing a tight
cost control so as to maintain its competitiveness and protect its
shareholders’ interests.

Apart from foundation services and leasing of machinery, the
Group will continue to explore and identify any suitable investment
opportunities in order to broaden our revenue base to maximise the
return to our shareholders.

Looking ahead, the Board still remains prudently optimistic about
the prospects of the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group
will continue to exercise due care in pursuing its core business and
promoting its development plans so as to balance the risks and
opportunities in the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group
will also closely and carefully monitor the latest development in the
global economy and foundation industry in Hong Kong and adjust
its business strategies from time to time if required.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to
express my deep gratitude to our shareholders, investors and
business partners for their continuous trust and support. | would also
like to express our sincere appreciation to the fellow Directors and
staff for their contribution and dedication to the continuous business
development of the Group.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EERENRRE DM

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of foundation services (the “Foundation”)
and the leasing of machinery (the “Leasing”) in Hong Kong.

There were 14 active projects as at 31 March 2019. As at 31 March
2020, 6 of these projects have been practically completed while the
other 8 projects remain in progress.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, 5 new projects have been
awarded to the Group and all of them remain in progress as at
31 March 2020. As such, there were a total of 13 projects in progress
as at 31 March 2020.

Subsequent to 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this annual
report, there were 3 new foundation projects awarded to the Group.

REVENUE

The Group’s overall revenue increased by 84.7% from approximately
HK$203,015,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately HK$374,903,000 during the year ended 31 March
2020. The increase in the Group’s overall revenue was mainly due to
the increase in the number of active projects during the year ended
31 March 2020, especially attributable to a new project undertaken
by the Group and commenced since September 2019.

GROSS PROFIT/GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The overall gross profit increased by 2,135.5% from approximately
HK$1,827,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately HK$40,842,000 during the year ended 31 March
2020. Such increase was mainly attributable to the gross profit
recognised from a new project undertaken by the Group and
commenced since September 2019 as mentioned above.

As a result, the Group’s gross profit margin increased from

approximately 0.9% during the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately 10.9% during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AIEJE;THH‘]& *ﬁ'

OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income decreased from approximately
HK$15,921,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately HK$3,545,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020.
Such decrease was mainly due to a non-recurring imputed interest
income of approximately HK$14,610,000 arose from the Unsecured
Loan (as defined in the section “Debts and Charges on Assets”
below) during the year ended 31 March 2019 as compared to a non-
recurring imputed interest income of approximately HK$2,981,000
arose from the extension of the repayment period of the Unsecured
Loan during the year ended 31 March 2020.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses decreased
by 14.7% from approximately HK$40,589,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2019 to approximately HK$34,627,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The decrease in administrative
and other operating expenses was mainly due to the decrease in
payments of consulting and professional fees from approximately
HK$7,917,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$4,256,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately
HK$6,266,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 to
approximately HK$7,230,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020.
Such increase was mainly due to the increase in the imputed interest
expenses of approximately HK$4,616,000 arising from the Unsecured
Loan during the year ended 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$5,869,000 during the year ended 31 March 2020.

NET PROFIT/(LOSS)

As a result of the abovementioned, during the year under review, the
Group reported a net profit of approximately HK$1,009,000 (2019:
net loss of approximately HK$29,107,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 March 2020, the total debts of the Group, including bank
borrowings, lease liabilities (2019: finance lease payables) and other
borrowings is approximately HK$152,862,000 (2019: approximately
HK$134,140,000).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s banking facilities were secured
by (i) the Group’s trade receivables and retention receivables under
contract assets or contract liabilities of approximately HK$44,289,000
(2019: approximately HK$10,097,000); (i) the Group’s pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$16,308,000 (2019: approximately
HK$10,214,000); (ii) the Group’s right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment with total net carrying amounts of approximately
HK$34,829,000 (2019: approximately HK$41,530,000); (iv) the
Group’s deposit and prepayment for a life insurance policy of
approximately HK$9,003,000 (2019: Nil); and (v) the corporate
guarantee executed by the Company.

Save as the above, pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreement entered into between New Grace Gain Limited (“New
Grace Gain”) and Blessing Well Enterprise Limited (“Blessing Well”)
on 27 April 2018, New Grace Gain provided an unsecured, interest-
free loan of HK$100,000,000 to the Company on 25 May 2018 for
a term of 30 months (the “Unsecured Loan”). New Grace Gain shall
not be entitled to demand early repayment and the Company has
no right to make early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

New Grace Gain and the Company further agreed to enter into a
supplemental agreement on 31 March 2020 to extend the repayment
period of the Unsecured Loan for 6 months, i.e. the repayment
term of 30 months has been extended to 36 months. Save as
the extension of the repayment period under the supplemental
agreement, other terms and conditions of the Unsecured Loan remain
unchanged.

Borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$") and
interests on bank borrowings were mainly charged at floating rates.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy
while the Group pays vigilant attention to and monitors interest rate
risks continuously and cautiously.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmR DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group normally meets its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through capital contributions from the shareholders and
bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had pledged bank deposits, and
bank and cash balances of approximately HK$87,370,000 (2019:
approximately HK$82,014,000). The gearing ratio of the Group as
at 31 March 2020 (defined as the total borrowings divided by total
equity) was approximately 165.4% (2019: approximately 146.8%). As
at 31 March 2020, the current ratio of the Group was approximately
1.5 (2019: approximately 1.8).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did not employ
any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk, as
except for United States Dollar (“‘US$”) denominated deposit and
prepayment for a life insurance policy and bank balances, most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$, the functional currencies of the Group’s entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on life insurance policy will not be performed as
US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of movements in exchange
rates between US$ and HK$ to be insignificant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL

ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as those disclosed in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals during the year ended
31 March 2020.

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this annual report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2019: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2020.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 132 employees (2019: 137
employees). Most of the Group’s employees are foundation workers
in Hong Kong. The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are periodically reviewed. Apart from the Mandatory
Provident Fund and in-house training programmes, salary increments
and discretionary bonuses may be awarded to the employees
according to the assessment of individual performance. The total
staff costs incurred by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020 were approximately HK$52,736,000 (2019: approximately
HK$52,521,000).

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

To create a long term value for the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) is the Board’s main objective. As
such, the Board is highly committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and striving to maintain the management
practices in a transparent and responsible way. The Board reviews
and improves the Group’s corporate governance practices and
business ethics on an ongoing basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report, save as disclosed in the following paragraph,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions, where
applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman of the board and chief executive (“CE”) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the Chairman of the Board. There is not a
post of the CE in the Company. The responsibilities of the chairman
of the Board and the CE of the Company are currently taken up by
the Chairman of the Board and the other members of the Board. The
Board will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Group to ensure that business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All the
Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERA®RS

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the senior management
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. Besides, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

COMPQOSITION

The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. Details of the
composition of the Board and biographies of the Directors are set out
on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report in the section of “Corporate
Information” and on pages 47 to 52 of this annual report in the section
of “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”, respectively.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business
of the Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and
experience to the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors also provide their independent professional judgments
on the assessment of the development, performance and risk
management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy of which
the diversity of the Board is considered in terms of factors such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates are
considered against various objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of diversity of the Board.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five
directors. The following tables illustrate the diversity of the board
members as of the date of this annual report:

RAFREY BEEEHABREFTEK T
RRABEAFHRAMESERENSZTT
1t

Age Group
FEAER
Below 40 40 to 50 51 to 60
Name of Directors EEnS 40BE AT 405% E505% 515% E£605k%
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) & & 52 5 4 (£ /&) ol
Mr. Guan Jingdong RARF R STAE v
Dr. Luo Tiejian 7R B iE £ Y
Professor Lu Haitian B BRI v
Mr. Liu Xin Bl 87 % £ v
Professional Experience
EXER
Information Investment
technology/ consultancy
computing  Banking and Accounting and
engineering finance and law accounting
BRI,/ REBAR
Name of Directors EEHA ERIE RITRME BiREE &5
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) BRELEFE) v
Mr. Guan Jingdong BEREE v
Dr. Luo Tiejian AEBRET \
Professor Lu Haitian BB RHE v
Mr. Liu Xin Blor e 4 v

Measurable Objectives and Selection

The Board will take opportunity to invite female members over
time to join the Board when selecting and making recommendation
on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board would
ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires to having an
appropriate proportion of directors who have direct experience in
the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and
reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2020, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

TRLEFEBN
BE-T-TF=A=+—ALFE B
EFEREARTAGHZHEBRARENE
B2BTRBHEIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

HE BT2ERHE

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERZEESE REEETE FMESE RS
Esggad = = & RE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Chen Rongsheng PR AR EE S & 6/6 N/AT 3 11 N/AT i 1/1
Mr. Guan Jingdong BEREE 6/6 N/AT 3 N/AT 3 N/AT i 1/1

Independent non-executive Directors B FEHITES
Dr. Luo Tigjian BHBEL 6/6 4/4 N/A 38 11 11
Professor Lu Haitian BEERHR 6/6 4/4 1 11 11
Mr. Liu Xin 2ok & 6/6 4/4 11 17 11

RELATIONSHIP
None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
between each other.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2020
regarding appointment of independent non-executive directors.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors confirming his independence from the Company,
and considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company has arranged
seminars for Directors as continuing professional trainings for
corporate governance and compliance purposes. Some Directors
also participated in other seminars according to their own
preferences.
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Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the chairman of the Board who is responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the Group, including the
daily operations, business development and strategic planning. He
ensures that all the Directors are properly briefed on issues raised
during Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner.

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of
its responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back to the Board its decisions
or recommendations, unless there are any legal or regulatory
restrictions imposed on it.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (2) maintaining the
relationship with the Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the Company’s
financial information; (c) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems; and (d)
assessing the Group’s corporate governance functions. The full
version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Audit Committee is currently made up of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Dr. Luo Tiejian and Professor Lu Haitian. Both Mr. Liu Xin
(chairman of the Audit Committee) and Professor Lu Haitian possess
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required.

The Audit Committee held 4 committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2020.
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SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2020

The Audit Committee held one meeting with the former auditor, World
Link CPA Limited, (without the presence of the Executive Directors) to
discuss and review the Group’s results for the year ended 31 March
2019 and recommended the same to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee also held another meeting (without the presence of
the Executive Directors) to discuss and review the Group’s results
for the six months ended 30 September 2019 and recommended
the same to the Board for approval.

Other than the above, the Audit Committee has also reviewed the
terms of the Group’s continuing connected transactions that are
fully exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, and reviewed and discussed the Group’s risk
management and internal control function and its effectiveness, the
existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the Group’s
overall corporate governance functions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and (d)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for Directors
in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive. The
full version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website at www.kh-holdings.com.

The Nomination Committee is currently made up of three members
including Professor Lu Haitian (chairman of the Nomination

Committee), Mr. Chen Rongsheng and Mr. Liu Xin.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2020.
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The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting to review
and consider the composition of the Board, the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and the existing terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2)  accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(8) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7)  requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the
Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/
or advisors;

(2)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(8)  The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(6) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should obtain all information in relation to the proposed Director
to allow the Board to adequately assess the independence of
the Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3.
13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may
be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment

based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report

EEREER

AR ARSI 408 R £ AR Bl XM AR
BT MESGRTBENUEESAERE
BAE - AIABENTRER:

(1) REZEGR IEFTSHREDE
TP IR ERE T B A IR A (FIBE
SNER AR K ok B 7 BY T HEFT)

@ REZEERFARFAHARWE
Heg#HREFeRHEREABARR
FERIRBEANBARAR REER
ZEBENFE MEEFEERS -
REEERER  RAXNERBENEME
- R EMHRA  AESEERFNER
HEEREETETnITAKREA
AR EMERS:

B RHZEE
ERER X
R

HRBRERREARS
RHRESSRLERR

4) REZEFEBRIZREAKELN
BMEEENZ L LHBMTMER
T

6 FEREBUNNTEFME  ERZ
Bek JREEGRENEHUREE
EHNMEEN HEFERELTR
I B 31315 (AR B 32 BT AJ BE I B /R Lh Y
T MBERERDFEEENE
VAL N

6 EFSHEHREREBEREZZESWHER
ERETHNEYRERERE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERA®RS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
and the compensation arrangements relating to loss or termination
of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; and (d) deciding
the remunerations with independence. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Remuneration Committee is currently made up of three members
including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Dr.
Luo Tiejian and Professor Lu Haitian.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2020.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2020

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting to review
and approve the remuneration package and structure of all the
Directors and senior management independently and the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during the
year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

= A B IR 2 35 B
BIBECEE AT ZTAEXEBISE &
BT EE-A=-+—HIEFERSHKE
BEKESNZHINBES T :

HEsEE (&)

Remuneration bands (HKS$)

Number of person(s)

A

1,000,001 to 1,500,000
1,500,001 to 2,000,000

1,000,001%1,500,000
1,5600,001% 2,000,000

2
1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
performing the corporate governance functions, and it accordingly
reviews and monitors the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and the senior management, and ensures
its policies and practices in compliance with relevant laws and
regulatory requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the auditor, McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, received HK$650,000 for provision of audit
service and HK$50,000 for provision of tax filing service.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All the Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 63 to 72 of this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or

conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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In respect of code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should have an internal audit (the “IA Function”). Although the
Company did not establish a standalone IA department during the
year ended 31 March 2020, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the IA Function at different aspects of the Group
as the Company considers that close and regular supervision by the
Executive Directors and senior management, and the maintenance
of internal control guidance and procedures on the Group’s critical
operational cycles could provide sufficient and effective internal
control and risk management functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures
include a management structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are properly
safeguarded against misappropriations, transactions are executed in
accordance with the management’s authorisation, and accounting
records are reliable and proper for preparing financial information and
are not materially misstated. The procedure is designed to identify,
evaluate and manage risks effectively rather than to eliminate all risks
of failure.

There are also regular meetings held between the Directors and
senior management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification and
progress payments from the customers, the efficiency in the use
of the Group’s resources in comparison to the budgets, and the
operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with the
regulations that have material impact to the Group’s business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of
the Directors and senior management so that significant strategic,
financial, operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are
timely and properly identified and dealt with in a proper manner.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of
risk management and internal control for the Group and the Board
had conducted an annual review of its effectiveness during the year
ended 31 March 2020 through the Audit Committee. Same as last
year’s practice, the Company has engaged an external independent
internal control adviser to conduct a review on the internal control
procedures of the Group at both corporate level and business level
(as agreed by the Audit Committee). The review covered material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions during the year ended 31 March
2020. The internal control report has been circulated to the Audit
Committee for review and discussion. No significant areas of
improvement which are required to be brought to the attention of
the Audit Committee have been revealed.

As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group’s internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate.

The Board will review the need for the IA Function on an annual
basis.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFQO”) and the Listing Rules and
is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

° has included in its staff manual a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

° has established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the

Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERA®RS

Training on inside information disclosure is provided to the Board to
enhance corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Ms. Hui Wai Yue, the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her biography is set
out on page 52 of this annual report in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no changes in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. THE WAY IN WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (THE “SHAREHOLDERS”) CAN
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, EGMs shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business at Unit 01, 82/F, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the members concerned will be advised of this
outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM varies, according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

° at least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

° at least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include
20 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in an EGM.

THE PROCEDURES SHAREHOLDERS CAN
USE TO PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected including that person’s biographical
details, shall have been lodged to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business at Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, at least 7 days before the date of the general
meeting. The lodgement of notice should also be in compliance
with the other requirements of the Listing Rules.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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TRERBE
3. THE PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES

TO THE BOARD

Any Shareholder(s) of the Company who wish to raise his/their
enquiries concerning the Company to the Board may deliver
his/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong with the address at Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong or at any address notified by the Company from
time to time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are to be
declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of dividend to
be paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others:

(1)
@

the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

the Group’s liquidity position;

interest of shareholder;

taxation consideration;

potential effect on creditworthiness;

the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and any other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or
basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or
paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in
no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
HERERBME

The Group contributes to sustainable development by delivering AEBZHERABHEN TR AB2EBED
environmental, social and economic benefits to all stakeholders in éﬂ?iﬂ%fﬁ A ENEESENES - EME
a balanced way. This year, the Group is pleased to present our  EA#EHERE - AEE  AEEMRIEZEH
environmental, social and governance report for the year ended EZECEF AT —HALEFEMIRER

31 March 2020 for the purpose of demonstrating our efforts on HERERME LRABMHERRIEMEA
sustainable developments to our stakeholders. SEERIEEMNS N -

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, R ETHRIE ET0 R BIMT $k27 P& 2 3R 3R
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to e kEA ?ﬁﬁi?a SIFTRE  WHARRKRR

the Listing Rules and is divided into two parts, namely environmental ft e /i E 3o
and social.
MAJOR RECENT AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS THF ERERZA
ENVIRONMENTAL RIR
1ISO 50001 : 2018* ISO 14001 : 2015*
Energy Management System Environmental
REREEREZR Management System
RIEEERA

renewed in April 2020 RZ=T =T F M AFEH
* upgraded in May 2020 R=—Z - T4 H A4

BT EBIERBR AT 2019/20 F3f 27
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it

)

Social

Family-Friendly Employer
RERERE

ISO 9001 : 2015*

Quality Management System
EEEHEZ

ISO 45001 : 2018*
Occupational Health and
Safety Management System
BERERZZEERZ

Manpower Developer

AT

Green Organisation

BERE

* renewed in April 2020 RZ=ZT =T F N5 F 3
* upgraded in April 2020 R =Z =T F 0 B AR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HEREBHRS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal impact to the environment resulting from our

business activities.

A EIE

CIEEBE
$%lﬁﬁ#mILﬁL&¢%ﬁmm%%
EOUBEMERNYERERE -

To minimise environmental impacts concerning our site activities, we REEMBRTREYRBEERKNTE - &M
shall: L

Comply with all the applicable legal requirements and the
environmental aspects of the contractual obligations to which
the Group subscribes.

Prevent, reduce and eliminate pollution or any other
degradation of environment resulting from the production
process or from the use of goods and services.

Reduce waste and minimise the consumption of resources.

Try our endeavor to recycle practicable construction material
in our design and construction process.

Educate, train and motivate employees to carry out tasks in
an environmentally responsible manner.

Provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation
of environmental nuisance abatement and waste management.

Obtain and renew the necessary environmental licenses,
registrations and permits.

Encourage environmental protection among suppliers and
subcontractors.

BT PT BB R R E RS B P&
ERERETENANEE -

RN BN A EBRERSE
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EHREERETEY
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ZEHERE Y EBESREREE -
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B -

HERERKRSE

Collect energy usage data for analysis and future planning and
implementation.

Commit to continual improvement of environmental
performance.

The Group’s environmental management system was accredited by
Accredited Certification International Limited with ISO 14001 : 2015

and 1ISO 50001

. 2018 certifications.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE:
The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations:

a.

Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission)
Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)

Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132
of the Laws of Hong Kong)
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A(l) EMISSIONS
EMISSIONS

(i) Since the Group did not have town gas fuel and town gas
consumption during the year, therefore no emission data is
available.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nitrogen Oxides
(NOx), Sulfur Oxides (SOx), and Particulate Matter (PM) emitted
from the consumption of towngas and the Group’s motor

A(l) BEBL Y

BER
() B4 PO o 3 O T R R A R
R AT R

iy REBEZE-_Z-_ZTF=—A=+—HIHF
B - mAREERRNERRELER
MNARELEw  FELEYREZYHIR

vehicles are shown as below: wm

2020 2019
emission emission Increase

=t 2 i —ThEF
B E PR E &N

(approximately (approximately
in gram) in gram) Percentage
Types of Emissions BEm 2B (89%) (#)52) BSH
NOXx =Rl 787.3 663.6 18.6
SOx wmaty 13,597.8 11,472.0 18.5
PM BIE 58.0 48.9 18.6

The greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions of the Group were mainly
generated from scope 3. The Group always aims to reduce waste
and minimise the consumption of electricity in order to tackle GHG
emissions issue.

AEEHAEREB(DEERBDFREIEE
HEF=6E  AKE-ERNORLIEEY
FEHRAE  UEREEREHERHE

;E@ o
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The table below highlights our carbon footprint during the year ended TRINTKEMREBEEZEE_TF=RA=1—

31 March 2020. H L FER R B -
2020 2019 Increase/
Emission Emission (decrease)
—E-EF —Z2-NF
HmE Hepr g M GE D)
(approximately (approximately
in tonnes in tonnes
of CO,) of CO,) Percentage
(=&t (=& btk
Scope of GHG BREREzEHE HE 49 WE 2) 1% 49 WE B0 B
Scope 1 — direct emission FEHE-EEHERY 1,845.7 1,551.2 19.0
Scope 2 — indirect emission F_HmE-EEERY 150.3 181.0 (17.0)
Scope 3 — other indirect FoEHE-EMmEE
emission 719587 43,488.0 144,219.8 (69.8)
Total (a) 45t (a) 45,484.0 145,952.0 (68.8)
Total average floor area B EHEE
(approximately in m2) (b) (CEAAREED (o) 23,247 20,295.0 14.5
Intensity (tonnes of CO,/m?) mE(ZfLhnE
(d)=(a)/(b) F75K) (d)=(a)/(b) 2.0 7.2 (72.2)
HAZARDOUS WASTE BERBEREY

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that our business BESFAM - BHIEERMOEBREL
does not generate any material amount of hazardous waste during BEPTLEELEERNERBEEZEEY -
our construction process.
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NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE

Due to the business nature of our Group, certain construction waste
is generated in our construction process. The construction waste
is disposed of at landfills or sold for recycling purposes. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, the total construction waste disposed of
at landfills and sold for recycling was approximately 66,924 tonnes
(2019: 30,046 tonnes) and approximately 72,120 kg (2019: 227,936
kg) respectively. Our Group always tries our best endeavor to recycle
practicable construction material in our design and construction
process.

CONTRIBUTION TO GREEN BUILDINGS

Most of our customers had registered BEAM (Building Environment
Assessment Method) Plus for their new building projects. Being
one of the contractors of the customers, we are actively seeking
opportunities to increase our contribution on the green building
projects. We closely work with clients to support their projects in
attaining the target BEAM Plus rating. The Group also encourages
our employees to undertake trainings on green building to enable the
Group contribute more in the area of green building in the future.

mEBEEY

ENASERNERLEED  ERMETIHBE
FEELAETELEEEY BEEENE
ERHHEEBRIHEUNEBIK 2K - HEZ
T EF-ZAZ+—HILFE EBRHEE
ERHENHEKNELEEZENBE D F
5 466,924 M8 (= F — J1LF : 30,046M8) & 49
72120 F = (ZF — L : 227,936 F ) ° 7
BMWBRETRETREF  AEE—HEBN
e AT B AR EEME -

BAARZHEPCREINELEIAR B CBEAM
(BEBIRTEE) Plus - ERBEFPHEFR—%
AEE - RAUEBIREERFEEBRBEL
FZEH - RMBREFPEIAE  XFHHERA
B /S B 1R BEAM PlusaT 4% ° 7 & [E TR e B
BEZMFZEZI - SAKERRAEARE
BEZEER -

BT EEZERBIRAT 2019/20 Fif
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The Group also adopts certain methods for the reduction of dust
emissions by applying water sprays and using canvas at our
construction sites.

=

Moreover, certain machineries of the Group and those newly
purchased machineries complied with the emission standards of
Stage IIA of the European Union.

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there was no material
non-compliance with the applicable local rules and regulations relating to
air emissions, GHG emissions, water and land discharges, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in all material aspects.
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A(ll) USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources used by the Group in the construction process
are electricity, water, diesel, petrol and acetylene. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group has implemented
environmental management policy and internal principles so as to
minimise wastage and avoid excessive usage of precious resources.
For example, certain construction wastewater is collected and treated
for reuse on construction sites for suitable construction process.
In addition, the Group uses water tank in order to reduce the
consumption of water at our construction site.

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

Al EiR{EH

AEEER TBETEANETIRZERRE
N K BOE R LR - BRE ﬁJU%*
RER[AENDLE  AKECEBRERER
BHBERIARERA DA?@Q?E%&?@E%%@
EEREENEIR - flan - RASHLRYK
SEREEETHRIEK BREENHETIE
RAEEFEM - U ARERRMOME
15 K AE AR A A 7K

HRAEEZEEURNEE  WRMR
SREAKRTELEENEA -

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the energy consumption by REBEZZ_TF=—A=+T—HLEFE &

type in total of the Group are showed as below: BizEEE DM REREZYIROT

2020 usage 2019 usage Increase/

—ECEHF —hE Unit/total (decrease)

FEHE FHE floor areas* @GR D)

Direct/Indirect HiE HiE (approximately)  (approximately) Bf Percentage

Energy by Type EREzESE (£9) (%9) AL E A BStE

Qil 1R S 423.7 409.0 kWh/m? 3.6
FREF5XK

Electricity BN 12.0 16.5 kWh/m? (27.9)
FRE Tk

* Total floor area was 23,247 m? in 2020 (2019: 20,295 m?)

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within our
Group for environmental purpose. Details of which are further disclosed
in the section “The Environment and Natural Resources” below.

R TEBENEEALS24T AR (TN
20,295 5 K)

AEE-BERAEBEAMRELREBLIGZE]

BRRES - BHEFRE-SRBERNTXIR
BRRRERI—& -
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TOTAL PACKAGING MATERIAL USED FOR
FINISHED PRODUCTS

Due to the business nature of our Group, we believe that it is not
applicable to our Group.

A(ll) THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

Protecting the environment is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. Our Group is committed to sustainable construction and
minimising any adverse impact on the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Our Group is committed to delivering services with minimal impact
to the environment through the following principles:

° Focus on energy management throughout energy planning
including design, review, monitoring performance as critical
considerations within our core management process;

° Compliance with the environmental aspects of the applicable
legal requirements and the other requirements to which the
Group subscribes;

° Regular performance reviews to ensure that energy objectives
and the requirements of interested parties are met;

° Provision of staff training to ensure understanding,
implementation and development of those principles
throughout our business; and

° Continual improvement.

The Group was awarded Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification,
Energywi$e — Certificate — Basic Level, by Environmental Campaign

Committee.
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The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within
our Group mainly through the following measures:

Office power saving: Recommendation to turn off
lights and air-conditioning when not in use and log
off computer and turn off the screen when not in
use or during lunch hours.

MOEHE ERREFTERRARSREREE
ERREFALNEFTEREMRSRN FRHBEE
HEKKEEHBTRE -

AEETREBTIEERARERNEEH#
EREBRIGE IS

Paper saving: Use of email and other computer system for document review purposes, reduction in printing

and use of recycled paper.

EARMA: EAEBREMERRGWBE XM - B ENLEBREREDUAE -

B EBEZER AR D E 2019/20 FHR
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o Reduction of the usage of bottled water:
Recommendation to use reusable cups to reduce
the use of plastic bottles.

o RAERBEIK: BEREM A BRKKRERD
ERBE -

=

o LED T8 lamps: Implementation of LED T8 lamps phase by phase for environmental protection purpose.

o TBLEDE: SHRRETS LEDBIERBRRUE -

- -

° Noise control: Site working hours restricted to 7:00 .
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. (except for those construction
sites being granted construction noise permit).

° Sound level meters are used in construction sites
to monitor the noise level.

° Install noise barriers in construction sites to reduce
the noise emission during construction.

e REEH HMBIRERER/FLIFESRE
TRIE(ERN R ERZRERSIFFAIERIN - -

e RUBRARSEFERREE -
s RUBLEBIREIARDMETRORIHN -
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B. SOCIAL
B() EMPLOYMENT

EMPLOYMENT

The Group’s employment policy manages its staff recruitment,
salary adjustments and promotions and equal opportunities and
non-discrimination (such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family status, sexual orientation, nationality and religion). As at
31 March 2020, the Group had 4 employees who are not Chinese.
Our Group’s employment policy is structured to comply with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486), Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487) and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of the Laws of Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we
did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation.

The Group has a written policy on compensation, dismissal, working
hours, rest periods, staff benefits, staff training and health and safety.
The Group also targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
working environment and career growth opportunities to our staff.

The Group is always highly committed to attracting and retaining
suitable talents in the competitive labour market in order to maintain
its competitiveness in the industry.

The Group has been recognised as a Family-Friendly Employer since
2014 by the Family Council. The Group was also recognised as a
Manpower Developer in 2018 by Employees Retraining Board.

B. #EZ
B() {EE
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 132 (2019: 137) employees.
Most of the Group’s employees are foundation workers in Hong
Kong. Below are certain key charts in relation to our employment

aspects.

2020 Employee distribution by gender
TECEFEMRNE S ZE T A

13%

® Male
B

Female

g i

2020 Employee distribution by age
TECEFEFREASZE TN

7% 9%

® 18-30

31-45

36%

® 46-60

@ o0
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2019 Employee distribution by gender
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B(ll) HEALTH AND SAFETY

-

The Group’s health and safety policy is to achieve a safe working
environment which maintains a high standard of the safety, health
and welfare and to take every reasonably practicable safety measure
to protect all people working on site and the public from danger, and
to take all possible measures to minimise the nuisance generated to
the nearby area.

Compliance with the law and contractual requirements is regarded as
the minimum standard of safety, health and welfare in our strategy
at all times. We are committed to improving the health and safety
performance continuously through regular training, inspection and
audit. Notwithstanding that our ultimate aim is the elimination of
all accidents, our immediate target is zero fatalities and to limit the
accident frequency rate to less than 0.6 reportable accident per
100,000 man-hour. We recorded zero reportable accident during the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: zero).

Bl) RERZZE

AEBEZRENZERREERE—EAR
SREZE BEMENOZ2TIERE
TEHRBAEEBNEANTHNZ 2EERE
FIBERMBTHEZABRARLZ:  AEA
BE R A 1 AR AT [ 35 5k P A LR

BFEAIREHNBRE—BEHBREARMER
2 @BEEENFE &EFRENEER - &
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100,000 LD R06R - HE_ZT_ZTF =
A=1T—HLFE BMHEFERETE®R
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Subsequent to the reporting period and in May 2020, there was 1
fatal accident.

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SAFETY TRAINING
Safety is always our prime concern. All our staff are briefed and
trained with safety knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone
understands the risks of the task they are involved, has safety
consciousness and is familiar with safety precautions.

Our safety department is responsible for advising and assisting
management, project and operation staff, implementing our safety
management system, setting up in-house rules and providing safety
information and training.

Our subcontractors are formally notified and required to comply with
our policy and safety procedures.

To ensure our safety policy is well implemented, we will provide
adequate resources, and have different degrees of disciplinary action,
including warning and dismissal, to one who fails to follow the safety
policy and requirements.

Our Board, management, all supervisory and safety personnel

positively implement the safety policy and make every effort to meet
the target of zero accident.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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7B 15

Our Corporate Safety Management Committee updates our safety
policy annually in accordance with the latest legislation and safety
regulations.

An independent health and safety audit at the corporate level is
conducted annually in order to verify the effectiveness, efficiency and
reliability of safety and health management system against criteria
stipulated as well as to identify areas for improvement.

The Group’s occupational health and safety management system has
been certified in compliance with ISO 45001 : 2018 by Accredited
Certification International Limited.

B(lll) DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always promotes a continuous learning and development
culture within our Group and provides in-house training for all
new staff. We also have a training sponsorship program in order
to encourage and support our staff to pursue their professional
development through external training.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group provided various
trainings to our employees, especially for occupational safety
trainings.

B(IV) LABOUR STANDARDS

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material risks inherent to child labour and forced labour.
During the year ended 31 March 2020, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, we did not identify any material breaches in such area.
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B(V) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has been assessed and certified by Accredited Certification
International Limited that our quality management system, which
governs our daily operation for quality control and improvement, had
met the accreditation requirements of ISO 9001 : 2015.

As discussed in the “Health and Safety” section, our subcontractors
have been formally notified and required to comply with our policy
and safety procedure.

The Group also holds regular visits for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by our suppliers and work performed
by our subcontractors.

B(VI) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group’s principal business is the provision of foundation services
in Hong Kong. Therefore, the products and services we provide have
limited relationship with advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the
Group is highly committed to delivering quality services to our customers
through flexibility and capability in providing foundation designs,
contributing professional advices and making appropriate adjustments.
We tackle any issue raised by our customers by rectifying it within a
reasonable time and ensuring our customers’ satisfaction.

DATA PRIVACY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RIGHTS

The Group always emphasizes the importance of the protection of
intellectual property rights. We have marketed our business in Hong
Kong using [ as our trademark which was properly registered in
Hong Kong in 2015. The Group will only use lawful software licenses
for compliance purpose. There are also written policies in our staff
manual to govern the areas in the control of confidential information.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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B(VIl) ANTI-CORRUPTION

Integrity is one of the core values of our Group. There are written
policies in our staff manual to govern the areas in the avoidance of
bribery and corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering, conflicts
of interests, allowable acceptance of gifts or entertainment and the
control of confidential information. It strictly applies to all levels of
our staff.

A formal whistle-blowing policy was adopted in the second quarter
of 2017 for corporate governance purpose.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we are not aware of any
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our staff during the year ended 31 March 2020.

B(VIIl) COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Although there is no specific strategy in community investment, the
Group takes our responsibilities to the communities of Hong Kong
very seriously.
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As a Family-Friendly Employer, we always show our kindness and
care to our staff. There are written policies in our staff manual,
including the education sponsorship program to our staff, a long
service award to our staff for working over 5 years, a continuous 6
days’ paternity leave for each confinement of our male staff’s spouse/
partner, a continuous 6 days’ marriage leave for our staff, a birthday
leave for our staff and a continuous 2 days’ compassionate leave
for our staff for social responsibilities purposes.

Besides, the Group holds various events for our staff annually. In
order to make these events joyful and successful, our senior and
top management are always generous to make kind contributions on
occasion such as “lucky draw gifts” or “games prizes” to our staffs.

LUCKY DRAW EVENTS

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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Mr. Chen Rongsheng (“Mr. Chen”), aged 50, is an entrepreneur
in the PRC with his business and investment involved in various
sectors which include integrated circuit card and electronic labels,
e-commerce, fintech and virtual game platform. He obtained an
EMBA degree jointly awarded by the National Taiwan University in
Taiwan and Fudan University in the PRC in January 2014. Mr. Chen
has more than 17 years of experience in information technology.
He has worked in New Doone Technology Company Limited* (T3
FERIFL AR AT, a wholly owned subsidiary of Tatwah Smartech
Company Limited (FRMEERERERHBRAA]), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002512)
and is principally engaged in the development of radiofrequency
identification technology such as integrated circuit cards and
electronic labels since 2001 with his current position as the chief
executive officer. Since 2014, Mr. Chen has been appointed as
a director and the chief executive of Tatwah Smartech Company
Limited. Mr. Chen also invests in companies which are principally
engaged in e-commerce, fintech or virtual game platform in the PRC.

Mr. Guan Jingdong (“Mr. Guan”), aged 56, has over 25 years
of experience in banking and finance. He obtained a bachelor
of finance and taxation from Heilongjiang University in the PRC
in December 2003. In April 1993, he joined the branch credit
management department of China Everbright Bank. Later in February
2001, he was promoted to be the assistant of the branch general
manager. He was further promoted to be the vice branch general
manager in January 2002. In March 2009 he served as the branch
general manager until July 2014 when he left China Everbright bank.
After leaving China Everbright Bank, he was employed by Runxing
Financial Leasing Company Limited* (BEIgEHEBGR A a)) as the
vice president from July 2014 to November 2017. From October 2017
to April 2018 he worked in Tatwah Smartech Company Limited* (-
I EFE R R R AR AT as the vice president.

* For identification purposes only
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Dr. Luo Tiejian (“Dr. Luo”), aged 57. He obtained the bachelor of
computer software in Guangxi University in the PRC in July 1984. He
then obtained the master in computer application in the 6th Research
Institute of China Electronics Industry* (fF Bl g 7T 2385 /< 5T A1)
in the PRC in March 1990 and the doctor of computer software and
theory in the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 BRI B3
KZ) in the PRC in January 2001. He worked in Guangxi University
from 1984 to 2000 and was later transferred to the University of
Chinese Academy of Sciences in 2001. He has been a professor in
the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences since 2001. He has
rich experience and achievements in machine intelligence, software
systems, learning science and information planning. He took charge
of and completed more than 20 national and corporate projects. He
has published over 100 academic papers and 1 English monograph.
He holds more than 30 software copyrights and invention patents.
He was also granted the first prize of excellent instructor in the
“National Intelligent Design Competition for College Students*” from
the Chinese Association for Artificial Intelligence and the Zhu-Li-
Yuehua Outstanding Teacher Award* from the Chinese Academy of
Sciences.

Professor Lu Haitian (“Prof. Lu”), aged 40, has over 14 years
of experience in accounting and law. He obtained a bachelor of
international economic law from Nanjing University in the PRC in
June 2001, a master of laws from the University of Liverpool in the
United Kingdom in December 2002, and a Doctor of Philosophy from
the National University of Singapore in June 2007. He served at the
School of Accounting and Finance in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University first as a visiting lecturer in law from September 2005
to June 2007, Assistant professor in law from June 2007 to June
2012, Associate Professor in law from July 2012 to June 2018,
and Professor in law since July 2018. Since January 2018, Prof.
Lu has been appointed as the Associate Dean (External Relations
and Development) in the Facility of Business of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Prof. Lu has been appointed the director of
Chinese Mainland Affairs Office since February 2020.

Prof. Lu has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Loto Interactive Limited (formerly known as MelcolLot
Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8198) since
July 2017.

For identification purposes only
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Mr. Liu Xin (“Mr. Liu”), aged 42, has over 18 years of experience
in investment consultancy and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor
of Accountancy degree from the Jinan University in the PRC in June
2001. He worked in PriceWaterhouseCoopers for 8 years with his
last position as the senior manager in the advisory department. He
then served in Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Company
Limited* (E/BEE 58 (5E)BRAF]) (a subsidiary of Fosun
International Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 656)) from July 2011 to September 2015 as the chief financial
officer of Fosun Kinzon Capital. From October 2015 to February
2019, he was the chief operating officer and a member of the
investment committee of Shoreline Capital Management Ltd. Since
March 2019, he has been the chief operating officer of Vision Plus
Capital. Mr. Liu is a registered accountant of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since December 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul (“Mr. Yu”), aged 70, is an executive director
of a major subsidiary of our Group, K. H. Foundations Limited (the
“K. H. Foundations”). He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
marketing work and contract strategy of the K. H. Foundations and
is appointed as an authorised signatory under specialist contractor
licensing. Mr. Yu has also been appointed as the Technical Director
to act for the purpose of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) for K. H. Foundations. He has over 40 years of
experience in the foundation, construction and engineering industry
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu founded K. H. Foundations in 1985 and has
been the director of K. H. Foundations since then. Over the 30 years
of directorship in K. H. Foundations, Mr. Yu had the opportunity to
go through various development and construction projects of both
the public sector and the private sector in Hong Kong including, but
not limited to schools, hotels, infrastructure projects and government
buildings.

Mr. Yu graduated from the Syracuse University in New York, the
United States and obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Civil Engineering
and a Master’s degree in Engineering Administration in May 1973
and December 1974, respectively. In 1981, Mr. Yu was a director of
the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals and was subsequently elected as
chairman of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in 1988 and served
as the chairman until 1989.

* For identification purposes only
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Mr. Yu was appointed by the government to sit in various advisory
bodies since 1982. He was appointed as a member of the Board
of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries from 1982
to 2003, a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board from 1992
to 1996, a member of the Registered Contractors’ Disciplinary
Board Panel from 1993 to 1996, a member of the Council of the
Hong Kong Institute of Education from 1994 to 1998, a member of
the Administrative Appeals Board from 1994 to 2000, a member
of the Hospital Authority from 2001 to 2009, the chairman of the
Hospital Governing Committee of the Tuen Mun Hospital from 2004
to 2014 and a member of the Advisory Board of the Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals until 2019. Currently, he is a member of the
Hospital Governing Committee of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan
Yuk Hospital. He was awarded Justice of the Peace (Non-official)
by the government in 1989 and is a member in the Most Excellent
Order of the British Empire in 1994. In 2007, Mr. Yu was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. He was admitted as a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Builders and the Hong Kong Institute
of Construction Managers in May 1997.

He is currently an independent non-executive director of Continental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00513), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 53, is an executive
director of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Yeung is primarily responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the K. H. Foundations,
including daily operations, business development, strategic planning
and tendering. Mr. Yeung has more than 20 years of experience
in the construction industry in Hong Kong. He took part in the
foundation works and superstructure construction works in
construction projects of both the public sector and the private sector
in Hong Kong including, but not limited to schools, hotels, residential
premises and government buildings. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in
2008 and was appointed as a director of K. H. Foundations during
the same period. He is also the director of K. H. Civil Engineering
Limited, K. H. Machinery Limited and K. H. Piling & Engineering
Limited since each of their incorporation date, respectively. He has
been appointed as a director of Tactful Building Company Limited
(“Tactful”) since July 1993. Tactful is a Registered General Building
Contractor, and is mainly involved in building construction works.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMEN

Mr. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a professional diploma
in Building Surveying in November 1989. He obtained his Bachelor’s
degree of Science with distinction in Building Surveying from the
University of Greenwich (previously known as Thames Polytechnic)
in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He subsequently obtained his
Master’'s degree of Science in Real Estate Development from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1995.

Mr. Yeung is a Registered Professional Surveyor by profession.
He was elected as an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors in April 1993, and as the professional associate of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in December 1992.

Ms. Chan Lai Kuen (“Ms. Chan”), aged 56, is an executive director
of K. H. Foundations. Ms. Chan is primarily responsible for overseeing
the finance and account management aspects and as well as the
corporate finance functions in K. H. Foundations. Ms. Chan has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, taxation and financial
assignments especially with companies in Hong Kong construction
industry. Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2006 and was appointed as
a director of K. H. Foundations during the same period.

Ms. Chan was appointed as a director of K. H. Civil Engineering
Limited in 2012.

Ms. Chan was the assistant accountant of Wing Fai International
Limited from 1994 to 1998 and has been the accountant of Tactful
since 1998, she is currently a senior accounting manager of Tactful.
Tactful is a Registered General Building Contractor, and is mainly
involved in building construction works.

Ms. Chan obtained her Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy from the
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as The City University of
Hong Kong) in November 1992. She is a Certified Public Accountant
and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2000. She has also been a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2004.
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Mr. Wong Wai Nam (“Mr. Wong”), aged 57, serves as the general
manager of K. H. Foundations. He is responsible for overseeing the
technical designs of foundation works and technical department
of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Wong joined our Group as director —
technical in March 2014 and has over 30 years of experience in
the foundation, construction and engineering industry. Mr. Wong
obtained a higher certificate in civil engineering from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
November 1986. Mr. Wong became a Registered Structural Engineer
in Hong Kong in August 2000 and a registered inspector in Hong
Kong in May 2012. He has been admitted as a member of The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since September 1998 and as
a Chartered Engineer of the Institution of Structural Engineers, the
United Kingdom, since February 1998. Mr. Wong was employed as
technical director of Meinhardt (C&S) Limited from 2009 to 2014.
Mr. Wong was previously employed in the foundation, construction
and engineering industry with several companies and the Housing
Department, the executive arm of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
between 1983 and 1992.

Mr. Wong was appointed as a director of K. H. Civil Engineering
Limited in 2015.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hui Wai Yue (“Ms. Hui”), aged 483, has over 18 years of
experience in company secretarial and tax services industry. She
obtained a Bachelor of Accountancy in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in December 1999. She worked as the Tax Accountant |
in the Tax Department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September
1999 to May 2000. She was then employed by PKF Hong Kong (an
audit firm) as Tax Manager from May 2000 to August 2011 and was
transferred to PKF Tax and Business Consultants Limited as tax
director in September 2011 until her resignation in 2014. Since June
2016 she has been employed by MCGI Consultancy Limited as its
principal in the company secretarial and tax services department.
Ms. Hui is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since April 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETHE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business, can be found in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 10 of
this annual report. These discussions form part of Directors’ Report.
In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal adverse impact to the environment resulting
from our business activities.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group will also review
its environmental policies and performance from time to time in order
to minimise the adverse environmental impacts from our operations.

The Group targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent work
environment and career growth opportunities to our staff in order to
maintain a family-friendly relationship with our staff.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the
industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on time.
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The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacity) and subcontractors
(based on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality).

Save as those disclosed in notes 22 and 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, there was no other material dispute or argument
between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers and
subcontractors during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 27 to 46 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant
laws and regulations, such as the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the SFO, the Listing Rules and
other relevant laws and regulations. So far as the Board is concerned,
there were no material breaches of or non-compliance with the
relevant rules and regulations by our Group that have significant
impacts on the business and operations of our Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 11 to 26.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the
Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2020 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 179.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 180 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted,
pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 February 2016 which became
effective and unconditional upon the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange on 18 March 2016, for the purpose of
providing incentive and/or to reward eligible participants (who include
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisors, consultants, other
contractors, business partners of the Group) for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interest of the Group. Unless
otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, as from the
date of adoption of the Scheme, shall not exceed 40,000,000 shares,
being 10% of the shares in issue on the listing date. The overall
limit on the number of shares which shall be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The total number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon
exercise of options granted in accordance with the Scheme to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The option shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant for a period of not
less than 5 business days. HK$1 shall be payable by the participants
on acceptance of the offer of the Scheme.
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The exercisable period of the share options granted is determinable
by the board of directors, but no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the options. The subscription price for the shares in respect
of which options are granted is determinable by board of directors,
but shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Company’s share.

No share option has been granted under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2020,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised), of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to
approximately HK$80,726,000 (2019: approximately HK$88,237,000).
The share premium account of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to the Shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Articles and provided that immediately following
the distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able
to pay its debts immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 76.3% of the Group’s total revenue
and revenue from the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 35.9% of the Group’s total revenue during the
year ended 31 March 2020. The aggregate purchases from the five
largest suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 89.0% of
the Group’s total purchases and approximately 90.8% of the Group’s
total subcontracting fees respectively. The purchases from the largest
supplier and subcontracting fees paid to the largest subcontractor
of the Group accounted for approximately 51.0% of the Group’s total
purchases and approximately 37.0% subcontracting fees during the
year ended 31 March 2020 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the shares of the Company) had any interest in the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman)
Mr. Guan Jingdong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Luo Tiejian

Professor Lu Haitian

Mr. Liu Xin

In accordance with articles 108 and 109 of the Articles, Mr. Guan
Jingdong as an Executive Director and Dr. Luo Tigjian as an
Independent Non-executive Director, will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 47 to 52 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted indemnity provision
(as defined in section 469 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622))
in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout the year and as
at the date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant to which
the Company shall indemnify any Director against any liability, loss
suffered and expenses incurred by the Director in connection with
any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason of being a
Director, and in which the judgement is given in his favour or in which
he is acquitted. The Company has maintained insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Directors’ Report and “Related Party
Transactions” in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

EENXS THEHEH S 2
RS
GEEeREFIFEWFESS] —HNEGEE
B RS R R I sE 30 [ REEE T2 5 | PRIk BB & 4h -
BMEEEYEEF2AEETENRARRERA
B ARBMEMMI B ARSKRE R B A RN
AREERNI VLT HAEBEBKNEBEEE Y
ERRS  THSRKAYTEESEERESE
PN

EENGFEERB2ES

RBE-_Z_FTF=-A=+t—"HLFERE
EAFHAY  HEESUARFCETHE
AT (EERE EMARR)NE (HATge ) A
BEGERIEESF R T RE T

s
S o

I

ST
AR A AR % B A 2

R-—E-_TFZA=Z1+—H BEERARA
REBEEE (TR LESFRBEEHEXV
H)OMRD - HERNORESFTHEERERE
HFREEENEIMGETFENE LM
MEMES AR KBREZETAES
TAMEARRAR KRBT LABRIT

() RADTEERNBER

Number of
shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest interested shareholding
Fits #®%E
EEHR EaitE EERGHAE IREBSE
Mr. Chen Rongsheng Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 75%

(“Mr. Chen”) (Note)
PR b B8 5t AE ([ BR 5t 4 1) (P 3E)

corporation
R EEER

BT EBIERBR AT 2019/20 F3f
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(i) Long position
associated corporation

in the ordinary shares of (ii)

REBZEEERNETE

Percentage of
shareholding

Number of
shares held

Name of associated Nature of in associated in associated
Name of Director corporation interest corporation corporation
A EE HHEBER
EEHA HEEBNEE HEME Fris iR 13 80 B REASL
Mr. Chen (Note) Blessing Well Beneficial owner 1 100%
BeR o A (BT 5E) BiE EnlEBA
Note: B 2
These shares are directly held by Blessing Well. Blessing Well is wholly- ZERNBREEEERE - BEIHRLE

owned by Mr. Chen and therefore, Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested

in the shares held by Blessing Well under the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the following interests and short positions of
5% or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

INTERESTS IN

2EES Bt BREEFRHEED - K
EERERRBERANRDPHEAES

TERRRARR 2

R-ZZB-ZF=ZFA=1—H UTHARERQ
AR AR (0 6% B IA | 2 s MOR B
ERBRARAREZ 5 R E K DI55336
GRAEFZERELMA:

Number of Percentage of

shares held/ interest in our

Name Nature of interest interested Company

Fiis A EARRAT

Ha BB EatE =G HE EZMBEat

Blessing Well (Note) Beneficial owner 300,000,000 75%
&1 (i 5E) Em#EBA

Mr. Chen (Note) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

PR 7t A4 (P &) EE R E

Note:

These shares are held by Blessing Well. Blessing Well is wholly-owned by Mr.
Chen. Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
Blessing Well under the SFO, while Mr. Chen is the sole controlling shareholder

of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person, other
than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ Interests in the Company and Associated Corporation”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Share Option” and “Disclosure
of Interests” in this report, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of material related party transactions is disclosed in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction for the
two years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Group that are fully exempted from
independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as those disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no other material events occurring after
31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report.

BREXHKBEN RZT_ZEF=A=+
—B BREXIEEFRARFRBBERDH
m | — e EEERI  WEEMA
TEBLAREEZ R P EEHI£E3361FT
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM”)
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 will be held on
a date to be fixed by the Board, and a notice convening the 2020
AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in due
course.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company, not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued capital were held by public as at the date of this
report.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no charitable donation has
been made by the Group (2019: HK$250,000).

AUDITOR

World Link CPA Limited has resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 19 March 2020. McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 19 March 2020 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of World Link CPA Limited.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020 have been audited by McMilan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited shall retire in the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K. H. GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K. H.
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 179, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,

matters we identified are:

in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit

1) Revenue and profit recognition for construction contracts;

2) Liquidated damages and litigations for delays in completion of 2)

a contract; and

3) Provision for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables 3)

and contract assets

FRFEXEE

=7 5

ARECESHESREBEESCEXHE > AR
BAHESEMBBRRIBRRRER L
EH - REFTERELZEREREAVH
BERLRHASARREE MESFITeHZRT
FEREHENZER - BFICBRE
TRV E

1) BEESHZWERBENER
BR-—HANTRERZENS KEF

/A

EZRKFBARGNEENTAHRE
EFRR(HEAEEBEDFREEE

Key Audit Matter
BEEREA

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERPREARERSENSE

Revenue and profit recognition for construction
contracts

BESHZWEREFET

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note 4(g),
critical judgements and key estimates in note 5(c) and
relevant disclosure in note 7 to the consoligated financial
statements.

BRIGFE R EHEN T4 EX &5t B EK - W ito(c) &
ZHER FERZRAZFTIHBE -

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts amounted
to approximately HK$373,757,000 for the year ended
31 March 2020.
HE-T-_TF=-A=+—HILtFE X BEEEKRFEHE
B 492 Wz 49 /373,757,000 7T ©

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the input method based on direct measurements
of the contract costs incurred to value the contract work
performed.

AR RERB A AEERBEEFESOKTNEETK
ERNIREBENEETERRHEELER -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation
of revenue and profit recognition for construction
contracts included:

ESAHNEERTAERANCRERENERZERF

B

obtaining an understanding of the performance and
status of all major contracts through discussion with
management and key staff;
FRETBEERTIZEIMm ESMAEXIESRN
BWBEITRIBRZT#

corroborating management’s position through the
examination of externally generated evidence, such
as customers’ correspondence;

FRESHIBERGIUEFPBRMEEETEREN Y

=

examining, on samples basis, the contracts and
certifications of work performed;

MR EZEEQOREER I THERRAE:

performing substantive testing on costs incurred to
date;
RESELENRAETAERSE:

discussing and understanding management’s
estimates for total contract costs and forecast
costs to complete, including taking into account the
historical accuracy of such estimates;

A R N TR E IR B B AR S ) B A R T e TEOBI K AR
it BREEZEABBRRIBEERT:
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Key Audit Matter
HREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMARERSTENSZ

Due to the contracting nature of the business, revenue
and profit recognition involves a significant degree of
judgement made by management, with estimates being
made to:
HREBZANMEE - &1 BAM WS K& N RIEL
BEARE ZHE WA TEEELBRE:

= assess the total contract costs;

FHERE KA

— assess the stage of completion of the contract;

AEEHZ TR

— assess the revenue and costs associated with
variation orders;

AIEETEEERE WS R

—  appropriately provide for liquidated damages for
delays in completion of the construction works;
and
MRERTHKBEIRZENIEHEEZRE X

—  appropriately provide for loss making contracts.

REBEBRENIELESBE -

comparing the percentage of completion for contracts
to the proportion of contract costs for works
performed to date bear to the total estimated contract
costs;

2E25 BT IRENE KAWL BTSSR
LA RSB TER B DL

using the knowledge obtained from the above
testing, assessing whether any provisions for
liguidated damages or loss making contracts made
by management were appropriate; and
ERB Ll AAEScRM  FAHEEERENS
FEBENIEHZEMBERETAE R

assessing, on samples basis, whether contract
revenue recognised in relation to variation orders
met the applicable criteria in Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from Contract with
Customers”.

UHEEEFER IRE T REIANCOR S EET
ERBMBRELNBISGRIZTL AR RINER
RAE o
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Key Audit Matter
HREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMARERSTENSZ

Liquidated damages and litigations for delays in
completion of a contract

FHR—HANERERZENERFR

Refer to the critical judgements and key estimates in
note 6(g) and relevant disclosure in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R A IRE N iF6(0) EZH B R £ ZREBR R F
221F 1 -

The Group has been negotiating the final settlement
amount of a completed contract with a customer during
the prior years.

EEERNBEAF HE-EZEFPER —BETKAHN
WRREE TR -

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
commenced formal legal proceedings against the
customer and the customer made a counterclaimed
against the Group. The customer made a sanctioned
payment into High Court as an attempt to settle the
whole of the claim in relation to the abovementioned
contract and the Group made a counter-proposal to
settle the same claim to the customer. Up to the approval
date on these consolidated financial statements, the
legal proceedings are still in the process and there is no
conclusive decision to resolve the claim.

( ZET_EF=A=+T—BIFE S EXEHHZ
EPERFAEEEFA  MZELHE BHREELHR
RE - ZBFFAGFERELMNHERANR  EX2E
fRARE PANEANRE -1 ERERZFTFEL
REZNGEBER—BRE BEEXSGFaMBHREE
BOERE 2 ZBHFRNELETES  BEABBRRE
B R AR EOR -
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Our procedures in relation to the liquidated damages
and litigations for delays in completion of contract
included:

EFHANERERZENERFANEZEFGE:

— examining the related construction contract
documents and correspondence with the customer;

EEHARE/RNXHREAZTPNBER

— examining the legal opinion by the Group’s legal
counsel;

BE EEEEEBRMNEEER:

—  challenging the basis of the Group’s assessment on
adequacy of provision for litigations; and

g5t EEEEARFARBEORANTEHEE R

—  assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in respect of the status, progress and estimated
outcome of the litigations with customer as set out
in notes to the consolidated financial statements.
i EEEAMGAVBRRNEMSETFN
Firg e  EERMAEFERCRBEESRH -
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Key Audit Matter
HREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMARERSTENSZ

The directors are of the opinion that the litigations with
the customer are still in progress and it is pre-mature to
assess the outcome for the said claim.

EERR BEFPOFAMEELETH HIAM AR
18 45 SR O By 4 o SRR ©

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter due
to the significant judgement made by the directors in
determining the possible outcomes of the litigations with
the customer and whether it is necessary to recognise
any provision for litigations.
HREERETHEPFLANAEERREESHER
ERFRBERFELERAE  HEZFKLAEE
BRI REREZEE -
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Key Audit Matter
HREREE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTREMARERSTENSZ

Provision for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets

REZFBRURERSHNEENTHHEFEHRTRERE

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note 4(s),
critical judgements and key estimates in note 5(f) and
relevant disclosure in notes 6(b), 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B[ B B IE N iE4(e) I E X &5t K ~ [T iF5()
7Y AR F ERR AR ATE6b) - 21522089 16 B #

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets were
approximately HK$41,098,000 (net of allowance for ECL
of approximately HK$45,000) and HK$207,707,000 (net
of allowance for ECL of approximately HK$1,903,000)
respectively.

RZZEZZF=A=+—H AEEEZFERREKRE
HEEMNIREED R A %41,098,000% 7t (48 40 Bk 78 4
5 BB 18 5 1% 4945,0007% 7T) 5 207,707,000/% 7T (4 0 BR
T8 H3{= & /&5 45 8 £5 491,903,000/ 7T ) °

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the amounts of trade receivables
and contract assets to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant judgement and estimate
made by the directors in determining the provision for
ECL on trade receivables and contract assets.
HREZERBURERANEENSREFESUBREX
MEBEAREERETEIRRRELENEEN
EREEERBEGRMELERABN MG HEF
KEREEBNREREREE -
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Our procedures in relation to the provision for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets included:
ESHBEBESERNMERSHEENFHEEBEGHE
REHB2EFEE:

—  Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

— FEEEES  EBENRAREEBEMAM
BiefRAMERINRGT ITHERKRETR

—  Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models by examining the model input used by
management to form such judgements, including
testing the accuracy of the historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information including
the economic variables and assumptions used in
each of the economic scenarios and their probability
weightings and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising
ECL;

— ZFEERBREEERVKEBAEBMRAELE AK
B BESEEHEEBBERENSENL B
RASRBEERNBURN ERE FABEBEEXR
BEREARBERARAEEERS (BRERBESR
NERANREZERRIULERXER)REH
B LG REENRBEREEENERAENMEE
EER L IRR R

— Reviewed settlements after the financial year end
relating to the trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 March 2020; and

- HHEAEBE-_Z-_ZF=-A=+—HBHESEKNRE
RERNEERMRFEARENEEBL &

—  Assessing the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to the Group’s credit
risk exposure.

— HEREEMBHRANELNE S£EEGEERR
ik (1 48 B8 &0 45 5% -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIYRBAEHE

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.

s HEERAKELLSHERZER
HiER&ER  UREMERZEBZE
o RERAFHEEEHEABENEH
ZEARTHEEN  KmrAeERY =’
SEZHBRECNELERRRE
MESRREFEEATHEEL  A1F
DEAEZBMBSPRAFERELR
REMBHRRPZEBRER - RE
BRZEBESIRE  AERIESZER -
BEEZEWIENRBEERZBMHRER
BB ZEBZEE - AW RRFE
HYEBRAAEEH BESETREFE
REEL -

e TIHGREHMBREZEBEIFSIX -
EBRADBREEBEFE)IURES
MBEREREAFREBEAZS RS
7 o

e 3 EREERNERBAXBES UK
BHERRARBEEZERERE  NUE
HRAMBRRERERL - BFREA
SEEZZTA BERAT BF
RERBRAEZBEL -

BERERZRGAERERIGFEHEELR
HEARBEAERERSE  RPREES
BEZTHANEABEH 2EMERTRZ
J}E o

BEENAECZBEERIER  KAFF
NEABBY M ZAREXBEREFR  F M
BREBBAURAERRREFETTHE LM
ZHBERREEMEEAREBRZERT
HREZ &I

BT EEZERBIRA T 2019/20 F3§

71



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBABRE

72

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P06633

3/F., Winbase Centre,
208 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE—

P-PE=A=t-ALFE

1R

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZT—hF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt & T F#& T
Revenue Uy = 7 374,903 203,015
Cost of services rendered Fir 4 4 AR 7% B AR (334,061) (201,188)
Gross profit EF 40,842 1,827
Other income H b e A 8 3,545 15,921
Administrative and other operating 17 B K H fth 48 4 B 5%
expenses (34,627) (40,589)
Provision for expected credit loss 7t B 5 JE W 7K TH K& & %)
(“ECL”) on trade receivables and &AEREHEEEE
contract assets ([TEEE EBEDFRE
= (1,521) =
Profit/(loss) from operations BEFRBEA (EE) 8,239 (22,841)
Finance costs Bl & Bk AR 10 (7,230) (6,2606)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREaER(EE) 1,009 (29,107)
Income tax Fr {3 % 11 - —
Profit/(loss) and total AR BEAEBEER
comprehensive income for the B (EE)REmRES
year attributable to owners of the 4%
Company 12 1,009 (29,107)
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Earnings/(loss) per share BEREF (FHE)
— Basic — BEK 16(a) 0.3 centsflli (7.3 centsfl)
— Diluted — 5 16(b) N/AT & H N/A i@ F

BT EBIERGRA T 2019/20 F3f



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
an = 15 R O 3R

As at 31 March 2020

—E-TE=Ff=+—H

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & T T T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment P - EEREE 17 24,896 63,394
Deposit and prepayment for a life AZRBRENIRE &
insurance policy TES RIE 18 9,003 =
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 19 32,373 =
66,272 63,394
Current assets mBEE
Inventories A=y 20 4,167 6,431
Trade receivables Z 5 MW kIR 21 41,098 15,745
Contract assets AHEE 22 207,707 150,009
Prepayments, deposits and TERHIE Zek
other receivables H th & W 3R I8 12,177 9,677
Pledged bank deposits BB RITER 23 16,308 10,214
Bank and cash balances WITRR S &R 23 71,062 71,800
352,519 263,876
Current liabilities mBAaE
Trade and retention payables B RN REREMRE S 24 158,725 89,747
Contract liabilities EREE 22 5,272 531
Accruals and other payables FERT B B & E b e R E 25 9,516 11,445
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 9,745 =
Finance lease payables Bh &M & T R 26 = 15,924
Bank borrowings, secured RITEK - 27 49,740 27,398
232,998 145,045
Net current assets mBEERE 119,521 118,831
Total assets less current HEERTHARE
liabilities 185,793 182,225

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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As at 31 March 2020
N—_T_TF=A=+—H

2020 2019
== ﬂE = _jli
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FEx T T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HESE 26 483 —
Finance lease payables Bh & & T RE 26 = 812
Other borrowing, unsecured H b g5k - M 28 92,894 90,006
93,377 90,818
NET ASSETS BEZRHE 92,416 91,407
Capital and reserves BEAXRRGEE
Share capital [i% < 30 4,000 4,000
Reserves 1t 33 88,416 87,407
TOTAL EQUITY ExREE 92,416 91,407

Approved by the Board of Directors on 19 June 2020 and signed
on its behalf by:

KEFEeN _E_TFATABHETH
WTESERREE:

Chen Rongsheng Guan Jingdong

P Bt 22 AR
Executive Director Executive Director
HITESE HITEE

BT EBIERGRA T 2019/20 F3f 75
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e hE m 2 E R
For the year ended 31 March 2020
( ECT_TF=-A=t+—HIFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

AOE A AE
Share Share Retained Total
capital premium profits equity
BAx KBGHEE BEFN #=EHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FATT FATT FATT
(note 30) (note 33(b)
(P 5£30) (B 5E33(b)
As at 1 April 2018 R-T—-\FMA—A 4,000 84,403 32,111 120,514
Loss and total comprehensive income 4 A &5 18 K & H U &5 4258
for the year — — (29,107) (29,107)
Changes in equity for the year FREREH = = (33,607) (33,607)
As at 31 March 2019 and RZE-NF=A=+—H
1 April 2019 k=ZZE-nEMA—A 4,000 84,403 3,004 91,407
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 3% F & 2 T Ui 25 42 28
for the year = = 1,009 1,009
Changes in equity for the year FAEREH = = 1,009 1,009
As at 31 March 2020 R-_E-_ZEF=A=+—H 4,000 84,403 4,013 92,416

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

= A N —
GERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_T-_TF=-A=+—HLLFE

2020 2019
_ 7 _— $ _j-L i
Note HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BT 5E FiEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZEHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BR AR A (E518) 1,009 (29,107)
Adjustments for: AT ESEELFHE:
Depreciation on property, plant and % B RREFTE
equipment 12 4,622 7737
Depreciation on right-of-use assets CREEERE 6,745 -
Finance costs BE KA 10 8,091 6,778
Loss on termination of leases RIBEEERE 3 —
Written off of contract assets WEEHNEE 12 4,567 2,998
Provision for ECL on trade HESERBRERAGNEE
receivables and contract assets MEBEEEBBH RS 1,521 -
Imputed interest income HE R B A 8 (2,981) (14,610)
Interest income A B A 8 (95) (1,309)
Gain on disposals of property, plant Hj’iff%ﬁ 23 K R R
and equipment, net W= %5 12 (324) (11)
Operating profit/(loss) before working EESEYRILE
capital changes mm$U//(Eﬁk%) 23,158 (27,524)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories R,/ (g m) 2,264 (2,219)
Increase in trade receivables E 5 e W R (25,398) (1,431)
Increase in contract assets EHEERM (63,741) (37,782)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BT FIE - e R EM
deposits and other receivables FE W sk IE (32 n),/ R > (2,500) 643
Increase in trade and retention B 5 M B R
payables ﬁ': Efap il 35(a)(i) 72,220 44,659
Increase in contract liabilities SHBEEM 4,741 370
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FEEt B F K H fth FE
other payables FBECRA),/ %M (1,929) 4,515
Cash generated from/(used in) ReEs/(FA)RL
operations 8,815 (18,769)
Interest paid BERAE (1,501) (1,059)
Finance lease charges paid EANE: ﬁ HES - (1,103)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE (721) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEHESE (FTA)
operating activities BEFHE 6,593 (20,931)

BT EBIERGRA T 2019/20 F3f
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RERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE-Z _TF-A=-+—RHILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2020 2019
—EBCEHE —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 TiERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F B 95 1,309
Payment for a life insurance policy IHASRBRE (9,003) -
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BBEREE
equipment 17 (2,371) (7,034)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE « #E TR
plant and equipment 15 3IE 35(a)(i) = 80
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI R 1T 17 FE A0 (6,094) (76)
Net cash used in investing activities ~ R&EEB A€ F5 (17,373) (6,721)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZTHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank borrowings raised EERITER 35(b) 152,915 81,611
Other borrowing raised BEEHEMER 35(b) = 100,000
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEN 35(b) (130,591) (86,648)
Repayment of finance lease payables {&1& gt &1 & JE {4 778 35(b) = (11,529)
Principal elements of lease payments &AL 5 35(b) (12,300) —
Net cash from financing activities BMETHMERSFH 10,024 83,434
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HReRASEEDY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (D) EmEE (756) 56,782
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNHREEREEEY
beginning of year 69,372 12,590
Cash and cash equivalents at FRNA LB SEEY
end of year 68,616 69,372
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBeFEMIIN
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRE &R 23 71,062 71,800
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 27 (2,446) (2,428)
68,616 69,372

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED_L!I}
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =
e AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_ T -_TF-A=+—HILFE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 23 July 2015 under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
P. O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Unit 01, 82/F., International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 March
2016 (the “Listing Date”).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that, Blessing Well Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of foundation services
and leasing of machinery in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are discussed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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#n & 1% Rk M A
For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_T_EF=-F=+—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC) 23

Amendments to

HKFRS 9 with Negative Compensation
Amendments to Employee Benefits
HKAS 19
Amendments to Business Combinations
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Income Taxes
HKAS 12
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associate and Joint
HKAS 28 Ventures

Amendments to
HKAS 23

Lease

Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Financial Instruments: Prepayments Features

Borrowing Costs

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM

eI WRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF=-A=+—RALFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC) 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a single accounting model
for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16
did not have an impact on leases where the Group is the
lessor. The lessor accounting requirements are brought
forward from HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.
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NOTES. TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#n & 1% Rk M A

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HE_T_EF=-F=+—HIFE

82

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1
April 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity as at 1 April 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

(@) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines
a lease on the basis of whether a customer controls
the use of an identified asset for a period of time,
which may be determined by a defined amount of
use. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2019/20 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE-Z-_ZTF=-A=+—RALFE
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(@)

(a)

New definition of a lease (continued)

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 April 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 April 2019, the
Group has used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16 and
contracts previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted for as
executory contracts.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee
to classify leases as either operating leases
or finance leases, as was previously required
by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is required to
capitalise all leases when it is the lessee, including
leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, other than those short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets which are exempt.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE—ZT_THF=-F=+—HALEFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(CONTINUED)

(@ APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group
has applied the incremental borrowing rates of
the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental

borrowing rate applied 5%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption and
practical expedients at the date of initial application

of HKFRS 16:

(i) elected not to apply the requirements of
HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets to
leases for which the remaining lease term
ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease
term ends on or before 31 March 2020;
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